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DACULA, Gwinrgtt Courty. Pronourted "Day-
cue-laor Day-coo-la™ Establi shed asarail road
campin 1891 Thepost officeherewascadl ed
HOKE. Thefirst pastmaster, JohnW. Freeman,
coined the present nameusingthreel ettersead
from Atlanta and Decdur. Incorporated as a
town August 7, 1905.

DADE COUNTY.Cdled"TheFreeStateof
Dade" or "The Independent State of Dade,"
becaisetheonly way toreachthiscournty was
through either Alabama or Tennessee urtil
Georgiahighway 143wascompletedin 1942.
Credaed Decanber 25, 183Avith 168square
milestaken from part of Walker Courty. It was
named for Mgor Francis Langhorne Dade
(1793183) of Virginia, whowaskill edwhil e
fighting the Semindes. The unty sed is
Trenton(g.v.). The murt housewasdestroyed
by firesin 1865and 1895.

DAHLONEGA, CS Lumpkin County. Pro-
nourced "Dah-lahne-ga." Incorporated as
TALONEGA Decenber 21, 1833vhenit was
designated the murty sed, after previously
being at Auraria(qg.v.). Was incorporated as
atown Decamber 11, 1858Thisisthe center
of thehistoricgold mining region,andwasthe
site of one of the nation'sfirst gold rushes, in
the 18205. Other previous names of thetown
havebeen MEXICO, NEW MEXICOandLICK
LOG. Theold mining camp herewasknown
as HEAD QUARTERS. The ealy name of
Licklog came a&ou because salt was placed
inalog for catle, onwhat is now the puldic
square. The present name is translated from
theCherokeg Tau-la-ne-ca, or atela-dalanigel,
meaning "golden color" or "yellow money."
A branch o theU.S. Mint wasestabli shed here
from 1838to 1&1. In 1958,a caavan o
wagonsfrom Dahlonega caried 43 ourcesof

gold led which was doreted by citizens of
Lumpkin Courty, andappliedto gildthestate
cgoitol domein 1959.A dahlia and adaylily
have been named Dahlonegabecause of their
golden color.

DAISY, EvansCourty. Incorporated June 13,
1923.The original name of this town was
CONLEY, in hona of the ealy Methodst
minister here, Rev. W.F.M. Conley. Thepaost
officewasgiventhenameDaisy to hona Daisy
Leola Edwards, daughter of one of the first
settlers, T.J. Edwards, and sister of state
legislator, C.B. Edwards.

DALE'S MILL , Wayne Courty. This 1%th
century community was locaed nea Sdtill a
Creek, just north of the present town of Screven.
The postmaster in 1881was F.W. Dale who
ran asaw mill here.

DALL AS, CS Paulding Courty. Creded as
couny sed in 1851andincorporated February
8, 1854.Named for George Mifflin Dallas
(17921864 of Pennsylvania, whowasaU.S.
senator, foreign minister, and vice president
under Polk's administration.

DALT ON, CSWhitfidd Courty. Cdled " Tufted

Textil e Center of theWorld" or "Carpet Center

of theWorld." Theoriginal nameof thisplace
was CROSS R.AINS. It wasincorporated as
atownandgivenitspresent nameon December

29,1847 in hona of Captain Edward White's
mother, whase mai den namewas Mary Ddlton,

and who was the daughter of U.S. Senator

Tristram Dalton d Boston.Captain Whitewas
anealy settler whocameherefromMassadhu-

setts. The English pacename Dalton means
"villageinavalley." Daton becamethe county
sed when Whitfield Courty wasformedin 1851
DALTON COLL EGE wasestabli shed herein
1966,andis part of the University System of

Georgia.

DAMASCUS, Early Courty. Thisold communi-
ty inthe eatern part of the courty was named
for the capital of Syria. Damascus, Syriawas
the highway terminusof three caavan routes.
When the Georgia Pine Railroad was built



Dames Ferry

throughthis ste, the @mmunity wasthen cdl ed
KESTLER (g.v.), bu thedepot wasgiventhe
name Damascusfromwhat wasthenthelarger
community neaby, whichisnow caled Old
Damascus(q.v.). Thepost officeof theorigind
Damascusclosed,andMrs. AdnaMcNair who
wasthe postmaster, moved ower to Kestler to
beamethe postmaster there. M ost of the other
residents moved also, and the town changed
its name to Damascus August 11, 1914 The
original Damascusisnow referredtoasOLD
TOWN.

DAMES FERRY, MonroeCourty. Thisrura
community is locaed twelve miles east of
Forsyth. George and JohnDame made aferry
in 1810which crossed theOcmulgeeRiver here
for over a century. Their house herewasbuilt
asafort for protedionagainst Indian attads.
Thepost officewasonceknownasEBENEZER
(1887). Seealso S.A. Hodge, Senior, Bridge.

DANBURG, Wilkes Courty. A community
locaed 10 miles north of Washington a
Georgiaroute44.Named for Samuel Danforth

(179818586. Incorporated urtil July 1, 1995.

DANIEL FIELD, Augusta. Thismunicipal
airport wasnamed by the Augusta aty council
in hona of Mayor R.H. Daniel, who promoted
thelocd aviation program.

DANIELL'S MILL(S),DouglasCourty. A
former community on Dog River, 12 miles
southwest of Douglasvill e. Named for the J.B.
and G.M. Daniell Flour and Grist Mill .

DANIEL SPRINGS, Greeae Courty. This
community islocated six mileseast of Union
Point onGeorgiahighway 44.Named for the
family of James K. Daniel, who ovned 117
savesin Greene Courty.

DANIELSVILLE ,CSMadisonCourty. Was
made cournty sea in 1812and incorporated
November 27, 1817Namedfor Genera Allen
Daniel, an dficer of themiliti ahere, who hed
beena cagtanintheRevolution.Genera Danidl
dorated lands for the first puldic buildings.

D'ANTIGNAC SWAMP, Burke Courty.
Locaed onthe Savannah River nea Hancock's
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Landng. Thiswasformerly part of theWilli am
D'Antignacplantation.

DANVILLE , Elbert Courty. Thisformer vill age
was onthe Broad River, athouwgh the exad
locaionisnat catan.ltwaslad ou about 1798
by Clairborne Webb (17601830, bu failed
tosurvive. Derivation d thenameisunknown.
Therewasalso aplace cied DANVILLEIN
Sumter Courty, located ontheFlint River, ten
miles east of Americus.

DANVILLE , TwiggsCourty. Established as
aralroadtownabou 1891 andwasfirst cdled
HUGHES. Thepaost officewasestabli shed April
1, 1892,and ramed for Daniel Greenwood
Hughes, father of Congressman Dudey M.
Hughes(seeDudey, LaurensCourty). Thetown
was incorporated August 22, 1905.

DARIEN, CSMclIntosh County. Incorporated
asatown December 12, 1816ndestabli shed
asaport of entry December 19, 1816Wasmade
county sed andincorporated asa Gty December
18, 1818 Wasonce cdled"Queen o theDdta"
andalso knovnasDARIEN CITY. Thiswas
aprominent community inealy colonia times,
and was established at the site of Fort King
George(q.v.), whichwasgarrisonedfrom 1721
to 1727 Thetownwasfirst settled by Scottish
Highlanders uncer the leadership of John
Mclntosh Mohr, who arrived in 1736 orthe
ship Princeof Wales, pil oted by Captain George
Dunber. They first named the place NEW
INVERNESS (qg.v.) after their county of
Invernessshirein Scotland. They then estab-
li shed apast herethey named FORT DARIEN
(9.v.), andthesurroundng areawasthencdled
Darien. AnIndian settlement cdl ed HUSPAW
TOWN was located here previously. During
theCivil War, ReverendMangfidd French,who
wascdl edthe"White Jesus," formed aGospe
Army of bladk hymn singing crusaders who
burned DarienJuly 11, 1863, sparingonly five
buildings.

DARK CORNER, DouglasCounty. A.former
post officelocaed 4 X2 mileswest of Douglas-
vill e. Named for the Cherokeeleader known
asTheDark, who devel oped thefirst toll road
into Cherokeelands.
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(THE) DARK ENTRY, Camden Courty.
A descriptivenamefor aremote, isolated,and
|onesomeroutewhich extendsten milesnorth-
west from St. Marys. It passes svera miles
to the north of today's Georgia highway 40.

DARLINGTON SCHOOL ,Rome. A college
preparatory schod for boys. Foundedin 19(
by JohnPaul andAliceAlgoodCooper. Named
in hona of Joseph James Darlington, teater
and later an attorney.

DARTMOUTH, Elbert Courty. Waslocaed
two milesabove Fort James onthe peninsula
between the Savanneh andBroad rivers. Settled
in 1776 ly someVirginianswhotookthename
fromthetown of DartmouthinVirginia. Was
also said to have been named after the Earl of
Dartmouth, after he had influenced the King
togrant spedal privilegestothe alonies. This
wasthethird townto be establi shedin Georgia,
but it soonexpired andgave placeto Petersburg
(9.v)which wasthen established neaby. See
also Bobby Brown State Park.

DART RIVER. Thisriver runsalongthesouth
border of Elbert Courty. It was named about
1772by provincia governor James Wright,
inhona of theEarl of Dartmouth. Thisisnow
knownastheBROAD RIVER. Seealso Dart-
mouth and New Purchase.

DASHBOARD, Carroll Courty. Thiscommu-
nity islocatedjust below Bowdon.According
to J.T. Philli ps, president of Brewton Parker
College, the name originated after Slick
Chambers mulekicked thedashboard o Ceal
Spruell's new buggy here.

DASHER, Lowndes Courty. Incorporated
March 14,1967.Thistown locaed six miles
south of Valdostawas establi shed about 1912,
and named for thefirst settler of thisareg Mr.
O.P. Dasher.

DAVENPORT MOUNTAIN,UnionCounty.
Located just southwest of Nottely Lake, and
named for JohnDavenpat who cameto this
sedionto settlein 1838.

DAVISBORO, WashingonCourty. Incorpard-
edin 1894 Thistownwasbdieved named abou

Dean

1827for the grandfather of T.J. Davis, who
settled herefrom North Carolina. In 1842wvhen
theCentral of GeorgiaRail road passed through
here, the station was named NUMBER 12.

DAVIS HILL ,Atlanta Located nesr Bankhead
Highway andChappell Road. Namedfor Union
general, Jeff C. Davis, who accupied the site
July 22, 1864.

DAWSON, CSTerdl Courty. "World'sLargest
Spanish Peanut Market” Incorporated asatown
December 22, 1857when it was named for
Willi am C. Dawson (see Dawson Courty).

DAWSON COUNTY.Creaed Decenber 3,
1857with 209sgquaremilestakenfrom Gilmer
and Lumpkin courties. Named for Willi am
Crosby Dawson (17981857, Georgia-born
lawyer, soldier, who was eleded to the U.S.
Senate(1849-1855. The murty sea isDawson
ville (g.v.).

DAWSONVILLE, CS Dawson Courty.

Incorporated as a town December 10, 1859,
and ramed for Willi am C. Dawson(see Dawson

County).

DAWSONVILLE , GordonCourty. A previous
nameof CALHOUN (g.v.) andwascadledthis
to compliment a Mr. Dawson who owvned a
genera store here.

DEAD MAN'S BRANCH,WatonCourty.
Theforcesof Elij ah Clarkedefeged thelndians
inabattlehere September 21, 1787after which
the"Americans' buried their dead among the
canes of this gream, in the eatern sedion o
the ournty.

DEAN, EvansCounty. Namedfor Mrs. W.H.
(Dean G.) Hodges. Thisformer post officewas
establi shed abou 19064t the site of the present
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DEANS CROSSNG, four miles outh of
Claxton. There was aplacecdled DEAN in
McDuffie Courty at the turn of the century,
and this was also an ealy name of WACO,
HaralsonCourty. AndDEAN isthefirst name
by which AURARIA (g.v.), Lumpkin Courty
was cdled.

DEARING, McDuffieCourty. Incorporated

asatownAugust 13, 1910Thepost officeof

LOMBARDY wasestabli shed here February

3,1823 Thenamewaschanged April 1, 1893
to hona Mr. Willi am Deaing, onthe board

of diredors of the Georgia Rail road.

DECATUR, CSDeKab Courty. Incorporated
as atown and also designated as the murty
sed onDecamber 10, 1823Thisistheoldest
town in the omunty and was named for
Commodare Decdur (see Decdur Courty).

DECATUR COUNTY. Creded December
8,1823with 586square milestaken from part
of Early County. Named for Stephen Decdur
(17791820 of Maryland,anill ustriousU.S.
Navy commodare, who was kill ed in a duel
by Commodore JamesBarron.The curty sea
isBainbridge. (g.v.).

DEEPSTEP, WashingtonCourty. Frgt incorpo-
rated as atown Decamber 15, 1900A locd
legend explainsthat an Indian acadently put
his foat down in a large hole here and ex-
claimed, "Ugh. Deg step!" Actuall y thefirst
postmaster, Gas Avant, submitted the name
taken from the nearby Degpstep Creek (q,Vv.),
which flows aong the town's utheastern
border.

DEEPSTEP CREEK,WashingtonCourty.
A tributary of Buffalo Creek, this greanwas
formerly cdled DEEP CREEK because the
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banksnea the present town o DEEPSTEP(q.v.)
werestegy and hed to be aossed downstream
where it was less $ee.

DE FOORS FERRY ROAD,Atlanta. Named
for Martin DeFoor, pioneea settler who pu-
chased (in 1853 and operated theold Montgom-
ery Ferry aaossthe ChattahoacheeRiver.

DE KALB COLLE GE,Clarkston.Ajunior
college established by the DeKalb County
Schod District, which opened ona100-aae
siteinthefall of 1964.

DEKALB COUNTY.Pronourced"DeeKab."
Creded December 9, 1822with 269squaremiles
taken from Fayette, Gwinnett and Henry
courties. Namedin horor of the German-born
hero of theRevolution,"Baron' JohannDeKab
(17221780, whoacemmpanied LaFayetteto
America Hewasnat ared baronat al, but the
son d aBohemian peasant. He was ore of a
number of Europeans who came to help the
colonistsin the Revolutionary War. DeKab
wasinspedor genera of thearmy, andwaswith
Washingtonat Valley Forge. The munty sea
isDecdur (q.v.).

DELANO, LAKE, FranklinD. Rocsevelt State
Park. This 15-aae lake was named in hona
of the late president's mother, Sara Delano
Roaosevelt.

DELEGAL'S FORT, St. Simonsidand.Was
built at SeaPoint in 1736, bu thereisnow no
traceof thestructure. Named for andwasunder
the mmand d Lieutenant Phili p Delegdl. The
larger Fort Saint Simons(g.v.) wasbult neaby
two yeaslater.

DELHI, Wilkes Courty. A rural community
located about twelvemilesnarthwest of Wash-
ington, remed from the dty in India.
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DEMERE ROAD, St. Simonslsland. Built
by Fredericasettlersin 1738to conred Fort
Frederica and Fort St. Simons. It was part of
theMilitary Road. Named for Captain Raymond
Demere, anativeof Francewhocameto Georgia
in 1738 after serving in the English army at
Gibraltar.

DEMOREST, Habersham Courty. Incorparated
November 13, 1889Laid out by J. A. Reynolds
in 1890at the site of a sawmill camp which
wasoperated by Mr. Henry Rossngnd. A group
of people from the North had come here to
establi sh a prohibition town. With them was
aMr. W. Jennings Demorest for whom they
named the place Hewasaleading prohibition
spedker andleader, who dedinNew Yorkin
1895.DEMOREST LAKE islocated here.

DENMARK, Bull ock Courty. Thiscommunity
inthesouthern sedion d the murty wasnamed
fromthe courtryinEurope. Ineali er yeasthere
existed ancther community of DENMARK,
locaed in Crawford Courty, four mileswest
of Knoxvill e.

DENNIS, Murray Courty. This community
waslocaed eleven miles utheast of Spring
Place where DennisJohrson operated agenerd
store.

DENSON'S MILL , TwiggsCourty. Located
nea Bullard, thispost officeopened June 15,
1869,with thefirst pastmaster being Elias J.
Denson.

DENTON, Jeff Davis Courty. Incorporated
August 21,1911 Thistownisthought to have
been named for Samuel Denton (18061846
from South Carolina, whomoved to Georgia
abou 181520.

DE SOTO, Sumter Courty. Incorporated
November 7, 1889.Thistownwasnamed for
thefamed Spanish explorer, HernandoDeSoto
(15002-1542, whoreportedly crossed through
Georgiaduring hisunsuccesful seachfor a
richempire. OnMarch 29,1540DeSoto crossed
ChokeeCreek and camped here. Also named
for this Spanish cavalier wasDE SOTO, Floyd
County. Incorporated as atown January 22,
1852,it wasasubub of Rome, andisnow a

Dewy Rose

part of that city's Fourth Ward. Thereistoday
aLAKE DE SOTO, in Rome's Mobley Park.
Andthisexplorer'snamehasa so been applied
tothe400-foathighDESOTOFALLS, locaed
one mile south of Neels Gap in Lumpkin
Courty.

DEVEREAUX, Hancock Courty. A commurity
locaed seven miles outhwest of Sparta. The
station of the GeorgiaRail road wasnamed for
Mrs. Samud M. (AnnieLloyd) Devereaux, after
her husband provided the land reeded.

DEVIL'S BRANCH, Rabun Courty. This
fork of littl e Persmmon Creek in thewestern
sedion of the murty is named to refled its
rugged charader. Anather DEVIL'SBRANCH
rises nea the Screven-Effingham line. It was
so designated because of thedense swamp that
fringesits banks. Other streams by this name
arefoundin nathwest Clinch Courty, andin
WilkinsonCourty, east of Allentown.DEVIL'S
COVE inWalker Courty wasthenamegiven
toanarrow andrough littl evalley amileor so
southwest of theformer community of Estell e.
In Georgiathere ae & least threeriver bends
that have been cdled DEVIL'SELBO. These
are found onthe Savannah, Oconeg and St.
Marysrivers, and are gplied to sharp curves
whicharedifficult to nevigate. DEVIL'SHALF
ACRE, located ten miles uthwest of Eatonton
in Putnam Courty, originated abou 1806,and
was given thisname dter aviceridden dram
shop was establi shed at thiscrosgoad. It was
later knovnasTHEHALFACRE andfinally
adopted the present name of the ommunity,
STANFORDVILLE.

DEWITT, Mitchel Courty. A community
located 13 milesnorth of Camillaon Georgia
highway 3. Named for itsfouncer, Dewitt C.
Baoon.

DEWSVILLE , Baker Courty. A former
community 12 miles west of Newton. The
origina post office existed fromMarchto May
of 1884 It wasthenrenamed for thepostmaster,
Willam W. Dews.

DEWY ROSE, Elbert Courty. Thiscommunity
islocaed seven miles northwest of Elberton.
John Goff said it was named abou 1900 ly
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postmaster Uncle Jadk Christian for a dew-
coveredrosehis sndl daughter brought inwhile
he was considering a name for the new paost
office

DEXTER, Laurens County. Incorporated
August 22, 1891 Thistownwas sttledin 183
by ReverendJohnW. Green. Derivation of the
nameisnot known.

DIAMOND, Gilmer Courty. Thiscommunity
islocated 16milesnortheast of Elli jay. Locaed
herewerethe DiamondGold Mine andDiamond
Silver Mine.

DICKERSON'S STORE, SemindeCourty.
See Steam Mill .

DICK'S RIDGE, Floyd County. Named for
an old Indian chief, Dick, wholived nea this
ridge, whichislocaedin East ArmucheeMiliti a
District.

DILL ARD, RabunCourty. Incorporated as
atown August 21, 1906Named for Johnand
JamesDill ard, ealy settlersand Revol utionary
War veterans.

DIP, Hall County. Thiswastheformer name
of thetown of CLERMONT (g.v.). In 1913,
thefirst postmaster, Harvey Keith, dedded on

this $rort name ashehad nocancdl ationstamp,

and wished a short name to write by hand.
Brinkley saidthat "Dip" referredtothelocaion

between the mountains and ridges.

DIRTSELLER MOUNTAIN, Chattooga.
Locaed abou e ght miles southwest of Summer-
ville. This1,293foot pe&k wasgivenitsname
which was trandated from that used by the
Cherokeelndians, KARTE KUNTEESKY .

DISMAL COVE, DISMAL GAP, and
DISMAL KNOB. Locaed onthe BlueRidge
at the Towns-Rabunline. These descriptive
termsareappliedto unpomisingareaswhich
are nat suitable for farming. DISMAL
MOUNTAIN is locaed abou five miles
southeast of Hiawasse, in Towns Courty.

THE DIVIDINGS, RabunCourty. Thiswas
thedescriptivenamegiventoan ddIndantrail
intersedionat thesteof thepresent CLAY TON.

DI XIE, BrooksCourty. Incorporated asatown
August 17,1908to July 1, 1995 Was estab-
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lishedin 1861whentherail road camethrough,
firgbeingcdled NUMBER 17 @ GROOVER'S
STATION (see Groovervill €). When the post
office was transferred here, it was given its
present name. "Dixie" isaterm by which the
Southern States of the U.S. are often cdled,
but the origin is not certain. However, there
are threetheories: 1. From the slang for the
French dix (ten) dollar bills once used in
Louisiana. 2. A name originating with Negro
slaves, referring to akindheated slavehad der
from New York named Dixie. 3. Derived in
reference to the Mason and Dixon Line that
divided the freefrom the slave states. There
is dso a community of DIXIE in Newton
Courty, locaedfivemil es ©utheast of Coving-
ton on Georgia highway 142.And thereisa
community named DixieHeightsnea Albany
in Dougherty Courty.

DOCTORS CREEK, Long Courty. Rises
abou six milesnorth of Ludowici, andflows
southward into the Altamaha River. Was
probably namedfor Indan chief, Captain Alledk
(see Aledks Creek).

DOCTORTOWN, Wayne County. Hasa so
beenwritten DOCTOR'STOWN. Thiscommu-
nity was established in 1827 uporthe site of
an ddIndan settlement onthe AltamahaRiver,
which wasthe @ode of Indian chief, Captain
Alled. For derivation,seeAledksCreek. The
first white establishment here was FORT
DEFENSE (g.v.). However, over theyeasthe
origina Indan designation revail ed. JohnGoff
pointsou that thisisone of few Creek Indian
town sites which retains its original name.

DOCTORTOWN SWAM P,WayneCourty.
Locaed ontheupper end d large Penhdl oway
Swamp. For derivation, see Aledks Creek.

DODGE COUNTY, CreaedOctober 26, 18D
with 499square milestaken from Montgomery,
Pulaski, and Tefair courties. Namedin hona
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of William Earle Dodge (1805-1883), an
industrialist and temperance leader of New
Y ork. He had purchased theland between the
Ocmulgee and Oconee rivers from the state
of Indianainabankruptcy sale. Thisincluded
500 square milescomprising most of the present
Dodge, Laurens, Pulaski, Telfair and Montgom-
ery counties. Seeal so Suomi. The county seat
is Eastman (Q.v.).

DOERUN, Colquitt County. Incorporated as
atown December 20, 1899. The name came
about in the early days when there was adeer
run or trail between the head of a stream on
thenorth sideof town and oneonthesouthsde.

DOGWOOD VALLEY, Catoosa County.
Located at the southeast corner of the county.
Said to have been named for an Indian chief,
Dogwood, or for an early Cherokee town.

DONAL SONVILLE, CS Seminole county.
Was incorporated December 8, 1897. This
garted asasawmill town, and wasnamed after
John E. Donalson who owned the sawmill.

DOOLING, Dooly County. A community
located 14 milesnorthwest of Vienna. Founded
by John A. Jenkins of North Carolina, and
named for hissecondwife, MissEllen Dooling.

DOOLY COUNTY. Created May 15, 1821
with 394 squaremilesacquired by Creek on
of January 8, 1821. Thiswasan origina county,
named for Colonel John Dooly (17401780) who
wasmurdered by ToriesintheRevolution (see
also Tory Road). Hehad commanded aregiment
a KettleCreek (g.v.). TheCounty seatisVienna
(9.v.). The court house was destroyed by fire
in1847.

DOOLY SPRING, LincolnCounty. Located
near the entrance of Elijah Clark State Park.
This was the spring used by the John Dooly
family (see also Dooly County).

Dougherty County

DORAVILLE, DeKab County. Incorporated
December 15, 1871. The post office herewas
first named CROSS KEYS. The town was
named for Dora Jack, whose father was an
official of the Atlantaand Charlotte Air Line
Railway.

DORCHESTER, Liberty County. L ocated on
Georgia38, six mileseast of Midway. Settled
in 1843 by familiesfrom Midway and Sunbury.
Was named for the Dorchesters in England,
Massachusetts and South Carolina, ancestral
homes of the Midway people.

DOUBLE BRANCHES, LincolnCounty. This
old community was named in referenceto its
location between two tributaries of the Little
River, ten miles southeast of Lincolnton.

DOUBLE RUN, Wilcox County. Located
midway between Fitzgerald and Cordel e, about
ninemilessouthwest of Rochdle. Thecommuni-
ty was given this name because of itsbeing at
thejunction of tworailroads. DOUBLE RUN
CREEK flows southward from Double Run
andinto Turner County whereit goesintothe
AlapahaRiver.

DOUBLE KNOB MOUNTAIN, Gilmer
County. Located eight miles north of Ellijay.
Namedfor itstwin peaksof about equa height.

DOUGHERTY, Dawson County. This
crossroad in the southeastern section of the
county was called SAVANNAH (qg.v.) until
about 1890. Some say it was named for an
Irishman, Corndius Dougherty, whowasatrader
wholived at Quanasee(q.v.), saidto havedied
in 1690 at the age of 120. Goff believed that
themost probablederivationwasfor aprominent
Cherokee, wholong resided here, named James
Dougherty, Sr.

DOUGHERTY COUNTY, Pronounced"Dor-
ity." Created December 15, 1853 with 326 square
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miles taken from Baker Courty. Named for
Charles Dougherty (? - 1853 @ 1854, a
prominent lawyer and jurist of Athens. The
courty seat is Albany (g.v.). This courty
containsmore pecantreesthan any other courty
in the nation.

DOUGLAS, CSCoffeeCourty. Establi shed
andmadethe murty sed in 183. Incorporated
asatown Deceanber 10, 1895Namedin hono
of Stephen A. Douglas(seeDouglasCourty).

DOUGLAS COUNTY. CreaedOctober 17,
1870 with 201 square miles taken from
Campbel andCarroll courties. The ourty was
first settled prior to 1848 ly the Vansant brothers
from South Caroli na, Abe, ReubenandY ourg.
Y ourg settled at Flat Rock, two mileswest of
the present court howse. He dealed 40aaes
for thefirst courty sea at Skint Chestnut (g.v.),
January 9, 1871 Douglas Courty washamed
in horor of U.S. Congressman Stephen Arndd
Douwglas (18131861 whowasbarninVermort
and lived in lllinois. He was the South's
candidatefor the President, andwasdefeaed
by Lincoln in 1860. The murty sed is
Douglasville (g.v.).

DOUGLASVILLE ,CSDouwlasCourty."The
Dynamic City" Incorporated asatown February
25,1875.Named for Douglas Courty (q.v.).
The origina settlement here was known as
SKIN(T) CHESTNUT (g.v.). The court house
was destroyed by fires of 1896and 1956.

DOVER, Screven Courty. Thispost officeand
community is located ten miles uth o
Sylvania by the Bulloch Courty line. It is
beli eved thisnamewas chosenin conredion
withthe Dover AssociationRepart of theBaptist
Church (1832.

DOVEREL, Terrel Courty. Locaed seven
miles outhwest of Dawson.Formerly HEROD-
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TOWN post office whenthiswasin Randdph
County. The name of the paost office was
changedtoDOVERin 18&2and dscontinued
in 1870.Re-establi shed from 1897to 1902with
thenameDoverd becaisetherewasthendrealy
ancther Dover post officein the state.

DOVER BLUFF, Camden County. Locaed
between the Satill a andLittl e Satill ariversnea
their mouths. Thenameisbeli eved transferred
from that of the Cliffs of Dover in England.
DOVER CREEK, Camden Courty. Thisisa
channel nea the mouth of the Satill a River,
nea Dover Bluff.

DOVE'S CREEK, Elbert Courty. Thisformer
community waslocaed seven miles outhwest
of Elberton rea Dove's Creek, which flows
southward into the Broad River.

DOWDELL'S KNOB (or THE KNOB),
HarrisCourty. Thisknobis1,395fed elevation
and projedsinto Pine Mountain Valey nea
FranklinD. Rocsevelt StatePark. Thiswasone
of President Roosevelt'sfavoritepicnic spats.
Wasnamedfor pionee settlersLewisandJames
Dowdell whocameherefromVirginiain 1828

DOWNING (FERRY) ROAD. Was aso
known asthe ROME ROAD or ALABAMA
ROAD. It extended from eastern DawvsonCourty
through northwest Forsyth County, Cherokee
County, andwestwardto Alabama. Named for
the man whoran aferry where Field's Bridge
waslater built aaossthe Etowah River, at the
upper end d the present Alatoora Reservoir.

DRAYTON, Dody Courty. Incorporated in
1869toJuly 1, 19%. Thiscommunity islocated
nine mileswest of Vienna. It was designated
the murty sed shortly after the courty was
formed (1821, andnamed in hona of Colonel
Willi am Drayton (17761846 of South Carolina
The courty sea was moved from Drayton to
Berrien (g.v.) in 1839.

DREW, Forsyth County. A rural community
abou four mileswest of Cumming. Drew E.
Bennett wasthefirst postmaster when the post
officewasestabli shed August 23, 1889It was
discontinued November 21, 1904.

DREWRYVILLE, Spading County. This
former community was previoudy known as
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ABNER, andwas locaed onthe Flint River
southwest of Griffin. In 1881the postmaster
JA. Drewry operated a general store and
handed red estate.

DRIED INDIAN CREEK,NewtonCourty.
Thisisatributary of the Y ell ow River which
flows southward through Covington. Indian
lorerelatesthat it was © named after finding
the dried remains of an dd Indian chief nea
the banks of the stream.

DRIVER, PikeCourty. Theorigina nameof
WILLIAMSON (g.v.).

DROWNDING BEAR CREEK,Whitfield
County. Flows outhessterly from Daltonto
the ConasaugaRiver. Named for aCherokee
Indian wholived in this area

DRUID HILLS, Atlanta. This sdion of
northeast Atlanta was once a suburban
community. The name was sleded in 1908
whenit wasincorporated by agroup d investors
headed by Asa G. Cander, at asite seleded
and planned by Joel Hurt. In ancient times,
druidswerepriestsandmedicinemen o Celtic
people, reported to have been magicians.

DRY BRANCH, TwiggsCourty. A commurity
settledin 1808withitspost office establi shed
January 17, 1879 Many theories aretold as
to the derivation, bu it is not related to the
stream cdled DRY BRANCH. John Goff
determined that theplacewas © named becaise
of the removal of moonshine still s from the
locd streams prior to establishing the post
office

DRY CREEK. There aemany wet weaher
streams of this name foundin the state, such
asinBartow-Palding counties, Early County,
Wayne Courty, €tc.

DRY POND, StephensCourty. A community

settledin 1798 ly Josephand AnnWhitehea.

It was 9 named becauseof apod which stood

by thecrossoad herethat wasdry most of the
time, espeaaly in summer. This becane a
coali ng station between Atlanta and Charl otte,

North Carolina. Thetownof TOCCOA (q.v.)

was later established onthis ste.

DUBIGNONS CREEK, Glynn Courty.
Locaedinthenathwest sedion d Jekyll Idand.

Duffie

Namedfor LeSieur Christophe AnnePoulain
duBignon (17391825), aFrench nava captain
who purchased Jekyll Island abou 1793.
DUBIGNON HAMMOCK islocaed in the
northwest sedion d Glynn Courty.

DUBLIN, CSLaurensCourty. "TheCity That's
Douldin' Daily." The first post office was
established July 1, 1811, and the town was
incorporated Decamber 9, 1812 Anlrishman,

Jonathan Sawyer, agread to dorete asite for

thepulicbuldingsfor thetown, provided that

it be named for Erin's capita. It was sid he
didthisto pgeaehiswifewhowasfromDublin

originaly. The ourty sea wasthenmoved here
from its origina site of Sumpterville (g.v.).

DUBLIN was aso the ealy name of Resaca
(g.v.) inGordonCounty andCork (g.v.) in Butts
Courty, which till retainsthenameof DUBLIN

(Militi @) DISTRICT.

DUCK CREEK, Waker Courty. An ealy
community which waslocaed in the vicinity
of the present community of CENTER POST
(9.v). It was nea the strean cdled DUCK
CREEK, atributary of Chatooga Creek.

DUCKTOWN, Forsyth County. Thispogt office
existed from October 5, 1899to October 17,
1903 andtheplacewasincorporated urtil July
1,1995.Locaed nea the western bader of
the county, it may have been named from the
town o Ducktown in Tennesee

DUDLEY, LaurensCourty. Thistown aiginat-
edwitharail road stationwhich openedin 181
Originaly cdled ELSIE, for thewife of Joshua
Walker who owvned theland here. Becaiuse of
ancther station and post office by that name
in Georgia, it had to be dhanged. It was then
named for U.S. Senator Dud ey MaysHughes
(18481927 of Twiggs Courty. He was
president of theMaaon,Dublinand Savannah
Rail road. Senator Hugheswas co-author with
Senator Hoke Smith, also of Georgia, of the
National Vocaional EducaionAct of 1917.

DUE WEST, CobbCourty. Thiscommunity
wasagpparently namedfor itslocaionfivemiles
due west of Marietta

DUFFI E, Wil cox Courty. Thisformer commu-
nity was located ten mileswest of Abbevill e,
andwas ttled by the McDuffie family.
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DUG GAP,WhitfieddCournty. Was s named
becaise apionee road, cut out of ahill side,
passd through a deft in Rocky FaceRidge
at this point. Locaed just south of Dalton.

DUKES CREEK, White Courty. Thiswas
an dd Cherokeelndan nramewhichwasapplied
to the present NACOOCHEERIVER (g.v.).

DULUTH, Gwinnett Courty. Incorporated
February 28,1876.Named in 1875 ly aMr.
Howsell, grandson d EvanHowell, whocame
fromNorth Carolinain 1821to settlehere. The
name of the original community was HOW-
ELL'S CROSSROAD. The present name of
this town was chosen in commemoration o
aspeedimadeby U.S. Congressman J. Proctor
Knatt (D.Ky.) ridiculing a suggestion to
appropriatefinancial helpfor theinsignificant
town of Duluth, Minnesota. He asked,"Where
intheworld is Duluth?' The northern city is
named for the 17th century French explorer,
Daniel Graysolon DuLuth.

DUNAWAY GARDENS, Coweta Courty.
Located at the WayneP. Sewell Plantationsix
milesnarthwest of Newnan. Consigtsof 20aaes
overlooking Cedar Creek, which wasopened
tothepulic aound 194@ndclosed upabou
1963.Egtabli shed by and remed for Mrs. Hettie
Jane Dunaway Sewell.

DUNBAR ROAD,HoustonCourty. Located
northwest of Warner Robins. Named from a
former post officeof DUNBAR, located 3 12
mileseast of Byron.Named for theplantation
home of Captain George Dunbar (see also
Darien).

DUNGENESS, Cumberlandidand.Thiswas
originaly ahurtinglodge, andthenapaost office
nea the southern end d the island. It was
ereded and ramed by General Oglethorpe dter
an English courty sed of which he was the
owner, inthe courny of Kent. Buried herewas
Henry"Light-HorseHarry" Lee(17561818),
gallant cavalry officer of the Revolution,and
father of Robert E. Lee TheThomasCarnegie
family came herein 1811and Tom'swidow,
Lucy Coleman Carnegie, bult thethird Dunge-
nessonthis ste, which buned in 1959.
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DUNWOODY, DeKab County. Named in
horor of Mg or CharlesDunwoody, aprominent
citizen of Roswell, who developed this
unincorporated community.

DUPONT, Clinch Courty. A community locaed
ninemiles outhwest of Homervill e. Thiswas
known as STATION NUMBER 12when the
rall road first camethrough here. Itseali est name
when settledin 1858vas SUWANNOOCHEE,
after theneaby stream by thisname. Thename
was later changed to LAWTON until May 3,
1874 a whichtimethetownwasincorporated
as DuPort. It was named in horor of thefirst
sHtler here, Captain J.P.A. DuPort, whomoved
his family here from Darien abou 1858.

DURAND, Meriwether County. Previously
named STINSON, after ealy settler, Dr. James
Winslow Stinson,who cameto the cournty in
1854 Theplacewasincorporatedin 1910with
its new name of Durand when the Central of
GeorgiaRailroad camethrough thiscommunity
inthe ealy 19005. Thisname cane aou after
theDurandRedty Co. o Atlantabought land
here for commercial development. They lost
their charter July 1, 1995.

DURDAN, Emanud Courty. AlsocdledKEA'S
MILL, thisformer community waslocaedin
thevicinity of today'stown o Stillm ore. Willi am
Durdan operated ageneral storeherein 1881.

DURDIN (Militia) DISTRICT, Morgan
County. Locaed in the southwest sedion o
the unty. It wasnamed for theDurdenfamily,
descendants of John Durden, an ealy state
representative of the wurty.

DUTCH ISLAND, ChathamCourty.Liesnath
of Skidaway Iland.Thiswasformerly named
LIBERTY ISLAND, andmay havebeencall ed
HERB ISLAND.

DUTCHTOWN, Henry Courty. Thisformer
community was|located about six miles west
of McDonouwgh. Thederivation hasnothing to
dowiththeDutch, bu only with the Pal atines
and Switzers, who were then cdled Dutch
(Deutsch). It has also been said that the first
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settlers were Germans who had immigrated  variouspurposeshere. Thenamehassincebeen
to Americaby way of Holland, whichiswhy  changed to COCHRAN (q.v.).
they were called "Dutch."

DYKES CREEK, Floyd County. Thisstream
DYKESBORO, Bleckley County. Theearly  flows south into the Etowah River about five
community was named for Burrell B. Dykes, mileseast of Rome. It wasnamed after Dr. G.J.
a public spirited settler who gave land for  Dykes, who settled in Rome in 1836.



